
 

 

 
 

 

 

Forward Plan Select Committee 
 

Thursday, 25 March 2010 at 7.30 pm 
Committee Room 4, Brent Town Hall, Forty Lane, 
Wembley, HA9 9HD 

 
 
Membership: 
 
Members first alternates second alternates 
Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
   
Long (Chair) Farrell Butt 
Castle (Vice-Chair) Leaman Dunn 
V Brown Bessong Hirani 
Mistry HM Patel Steel 
HB Patel Kansagra Eniola 
Powney J Moher John 
Gupta Motley Pagnamenta 
 
 
For further information contact: Elly Marks, Democratic Services Officer, 
020 8937 1358, elly.marks@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

www.brent.gov.uk/committees 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 
 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of Personal and Prejudicial Interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare, at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 
 

 

2 Deputations (if any)  
 

 

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 3 March 2010  
 

1 - 4 

 The minutes are attached. 
 

 

4 Matters Arising (if any)  
 

 

5 Call-in of Executive Decisions from the Meeting of the Executive on 
Monday, 15 March 2010  

 

 

 There were no call-ins at the time of publication of the agenda.  The 
deadline for call-ins to be submitted is Monday, 22 March 2010.   
 

 

6 The Executive List of Decisions for the Meeting that took place on 
Monday, 15 March 2010  

 

 

 To follow. 
 

 

7 Briefing Notes/Information Updates requested by the Select 
Committee following consideration of Issue 11 (2009/10) of the 
Forward Plan  

 

 

a) Brent Equalities Monitoring  
 

5 - 6 

 The Select Committee requested a briefing note on this item providing 
details of the figures and trends that had been obtained from the exercise. 
 

 

b) CCTV Enforcement of MTCs  
 

7 - 8 

 The Select Committee requested a briefing note on this item providing 
clarification as to whether the programme is on schedule. 

 



 

3 
 

 

8 Briefing Notes/Information Updates requested by the Select 
Committee from earlier versions of the Forward Plan  

 

 

a) Adult Social Care Annual Performance Assessment 2008/09  
 

9 - 32 

 The Select Committee requested the attendance of the Lead Member and 
the lead officer for this item to respond to questions from Members. 
 
The Executive report is attached for information. 
 

 

b) Petition for Changes to the Consultation Process  
 

 

 The Select Committee requested a briefing note on this item giving details 
of what consultations are presently being undertaken by the process 
described in the previous briefing note and information on how these 
consultations are being carried out. 
 
To follow.  
 

 

9 Briefing Notes/Information Updates requested by the Select 
Committee that are not on the Forward Plan  

 

 

 Funding to Transform Learning in Primary Schools 
 
The Select Committee requested a briefing note on this item providing 
details of the scheme funding the transformation of learning in primary 
schools. 
 
To follow. 
 

 

10 The Forward Plan - Issue 12  
 

33 - 42 

 Issue 12 of the Forward Plan (05.04.10 to 02.08.10) of the Forward Plan 
will be published on Monday, 22 March 2010.  Issue 11 of the Forward Plan 
(08.03.10 to 05.07.10) is attached for information. 
 

 

11 Items considered by the Executive that were not included in the 
Forward Plan (if any)  

 

 

 None. 
 

 

12 Date of Next Meeting  
 

 

 The next meeting of the Select Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, 28 
April 2010. 

 



 

4 
 

 

13 Any Other Urgent Business  
 

 

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the meeting 
in accordance with Standing Order 64. 
 

 

 
 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
• Toilets are available on the second floor. 
• Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near the Paul Daisley 

Hall. 
• A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the 

Porters’ Lodge 
 

 



 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 

 
MINUTES OF THE FORWARD PLAN SELECT COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 3 March 2010 at 7.30 pm 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Long (Chair), Councillor Castle (Vice-Chair) and Councillors 
V Brown and Gupta 
 

 
Apologies were received from: Councillors Mistry, HB Patel and Powney 

 
 

1. Declarations of Personal and Prejudicial interests  
 
None declared. 
 

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 27 January 2010  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 January 2010 be approved as 
an accurate record of the meeting. 
 

3. Matters Arising (if any)  
 
Adult Social Care Annual Performance Assessment 2008/09 
 
The Chair noted that the Lead Member and lead officer had not been present to 
respond to questions on this item called-in from the January Executive meeting.  
She therefore requested that the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and the lead 
officer be invited to the next meeting of the Select Committee on 25 March 2010 to 
give Members the opportunity to ask them to respond to their questions on this 
item. 
 

4. Call-in of Executive Decisions from the Meeting of the Executive on Monday, 
15 February 2010  
 
There were none. 
 

5. The Executive List of Decisions for the Meeting that took place on Monday, 15 
February 2010  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the Executive List of Decisions for the meeting that took place on Monday, 15 
February 2010 be noted. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 
Forward Plan Select Committee - 3 March 2010 

6. Briefing Notes/Information Updates requested by the Select Committee 
following consideration of Issue 10 (2009/10) of the Forward Plan  
 
6.1 Printing Tender Review Results  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the briefing note on the Printing Tender Review Results be noted. 
 
6.2 Early Years Single Funding Formula and Policy for the Allocation of 

Full Time Places  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the briefing note on the Early Years Single Funding Formula and Policy for the 
Allocation of Full Time Places be noted. 
 
6.3 The Brent Public Health Realm Design Guide  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the briefing note on the Brent Public Health Realm Design Guide be noted. 
 

7. Briefing Notes/Information Updates requested by the Select Committee from 
earlier versions of the Forward Plan  
 
7.1 Building Schools for the Future Project Initiation Document  
 
The Chair commented that there appeared to be some confusion with regard to the 
briefing note request and she requested that a further briefing note be provided 
giving details of the scheme funding the transformation of learning in primary 
schools. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
(i) that the briefing note on Building Schools for the Future Project  

Initiation Document be noted; and 
 

(ii) that a further briefing note be provided at the next meeting of the Select 
Committee on 25 March 2010 giving details of the scheme funding the 
transformation of learning in primary schools. 

 
7.2 Petition for Changes to the Consultation Process  
 
The Chair requested that a further briefing note be provided at the next meeting 
giving details of what consultations are presently being undertaken by the process 
described in this briefing note and information on how these consultations are being 
carried out. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



3 
Forward Plan Select Committee - 3 March 2010 

RESOLVED:- 
 
(i) that the briefing note on Petition for Changes to the Consultation Process be 

noted; and 
 
(ii) that a further briefing note be provided at the next meeting of the Select 

Committee on 25 March 2010 giving details of what consultations are 
presently being undertaken by the process described in the briefing note at 
the meeting on 3 March 2010 and information on how these consultations 
are being carried out. 

 
8. The Forward Plan - Issue 11  

 
Issue 11 of the Forward Plan (08.03.10 to 05.07.10) was before Members of the 
Select Committee.  Following consideration of Issue 11 of the Forward Plan, the 
Select Committee made the following requests:- 
  
Brent Equalities Monitoring 
 
The Select Committee requested a briefing note on this item providing details of the 
figures and trends that had been obtained from the exercise.  The request was 
made by the Chair. 
 
CCTV Enforcement of MTCs 
 
The Select Committee requested a briefing note providing clarification as to 
whether the programme was on schedule.  The request was made by the Chair. 
 

9. Items considered by the Executive that were not included in the Forward Plan 
(if any)  
 
None. 
 

10. Date of Next Meeting  
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Forward Plan Select Committee was 
scheduled to take place on Thursday, 25 March 2010 at 7.30 pm. 
 

11. Any Other Urgent Business  
 
None. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 7.42 pm 
 
 
 
J. LONG 
Chair 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Briefing note for the Forward Plan Select Committee on the Brent Equalities 
Report 
 
SERVICE AREA:  Communication and Diversity 
 
 
Report ref Report title 
 
 
 

 
The Brent Equalities Report 
 

Summary:  
The Annual Equalities report provides a profile of the council’s workforce by 
the six diversity strands, as well as information about the council’s 
employment practices and achievements in the area of diversity, equality and 
community cohesion.  
 
The report which is a statutory duty is used in a variety of ways by the council 
and its stakeholders such as using it for comparison purposes on equality 
matters by service areas. This report is Brent Council’s eighth Annual 
Equalities report and covers the period from April 2008 to March 2009 
 
Headline results 
 
Gender 
On 31 March 2009 women made up 64.53 per cent of the workforce, which is 
an increase of 1.03 per cent on the previous year. Of the senior management 
posts PO8 and above 46.92 per cent are held by women, which is an increase 
on the 2008 figure of 46.22 per cent. 
 
Ethnicity  
In March 2009 Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) employees made up 59.87 
per cent of the workforce, compared to 58.87 per cent the previous year, but 
held 45 per cent of all management posts, which is an increase of one per 
cent on the previous year.  
 
Disability 
Disabled employees made up 3.78 per cent of the workforce, compared to 
3.62 per cent the previous year, and held four per cent of all management 
posts, which is a one per cent increase on the previous year. 
 
Schools 
In January 2009 31.6 per cent of teaching staff in Brent schools came from 
BME groups which is an increase on the figure for 2008 ensuring that the 
BME representation of staff in Brent remain is one of the highest in the 
country. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7a

Page 5



Contact Details: 
Jennifer Laurent-Smart 
 
Senior Corporate Diversity Manager 
Room 114 Brent Town Hall 
 
Extension: 1623 
E-mail: jennifer.laurent-smart@brent.gov.uk 
 

Page 6



Briefing Note for the Forward Plan Select Committee on 25 March 2010 
 
SERVICE AREA:  Environment and Culture 
 
 
Report Title:- 
CCTV Enforcement of Moving Traffic and Parking Contravention 

The report on Enforcement of Moving Traffic and Parking Contravention by 
means of CCTV cameras has been deferred to the first Executive and Full 
Council meeting in the new municipal year. 
 
The report was discussed at the Leaders’ Briefing and Members have 
requested further information on the configuration and enforcement of yellow 
box junctions, and on how enforcement will reduce congestion.  
 
The report was due to be considered at the Executive in March / April, but it 
recommends that the matter is referred to Council but there is no Council 
meeting from now until after the Local Elections. It is therefore logical for the 
new Administration’s Executive to recommend any proposal to Council.   
 
 
Contact: Sandor Fazekas, Assistant Head, Highways and Civil Engineering, 
Transportation Unit 
Extension: 5113 
E-mail: sandor.fazekas@brent.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 7b

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Executive  

18 January 2010 

Report from the Director of  
Housing and Community Care  

 
  

Wards affected: 
ALL 

  

Adult Social Care Annual Performance Assessment 2008/09 

 
Forward Plan Ref:  H&CC-09/10-17 

 
 

1.0 Summary 
 

1.1 This report advises members on the Annual Performance Assessment (APA) 
judgement for Adult Social Care for 2008/09, published by the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC).  The CQC requires that details of the APA be presented 
to the council’s Executive Committee by the end of January 2010. This report 
therefore outlines the areas where the CQC judges that the council is 
performing well and areas identified as requiring further improvement and 
summarises action taken to date.  

 
 2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1 Members are asked to note the overall annual performance assessment and 
in particular the strengths and areas for further improvement identified in the 
performance assessment report. 

 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 The CQC became the independent regulator for health and social care in April 

2009, taking over the role from the Commission for Social Care Inspection 
(CSCI), which had previously undertaken the role.  The establishment of the 
new body has involved some changes to the way in which the annual 
assessment of performance is carried out, with further changes expected for 
the 2009/10 process.  In particular, members are asked to note that the 
assessment no longer results in a star rating for local authorities and there is 
no longer a judgement of leadership or commissioning and use of resources, 
although comments on these areas are given. The assessment still looks at 
the seven key outcomes that were the basis for previous judgements, but 
rates performance in a different way, as set out in the table at 4.2.  Although 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 9



there is no longer a star rating, the performance assessment feeds into the 
overall CAA assessment for the council.  

 
4. Detail 
 
4.1 The table below summarises the elements that contributed to the overall 

judgement in 2007/08, to illustrate the differences in the methodology this 
year. 

Table 1: Adult Social Care Performance Judgements for 2007/08 

 
Areas for Judgment 
 

Grade awarded 

Delivering Outcomes Good 

Improved health and emotional well–being Adequate 

Improved quality of life Good 

Making a positive contribution Good 

Increased choice and control  Adequate 

Freedom from discrimination and harassment Good 

Economic well-being Good 

Maintaining personal dignity and respect Adequate 

Capacity to Improve (Combined judgment) Promising 

Leadership Promising 

Commissioning and use of resources Promising 

Performance Rating Two Stars 

 
4.2 Table 2 sets out the assessment for 2008/09.  There are four levels of 

performance:  Excellent, Well, Adequate and Poor.  Although direct 
comparisons between the current and previous systems should be treated 
with caution, performance can be seen as having declined against the 
improved quality of life outcome, improved against the maintaining personal 
dignity and respect outcome, while staying broadly the same in the other 
areas.   

 
  Table 2: Performance Assessment 2008/09 
 

 
Areas for Judgment 
 

The Council is 
Performing 

Improved health and emotional well–being Adequate 

Improved quality of life Adequate 

Making a positive contribution Well 

Increased choice and control  Adequate 

Freedom from discrimination and harassment Well 

Economic well-being Well 

Maintaining personal dignity and respect Well 

Overall Assessment 

The council is performing: Well 

Page 10



 
 
4.3 Overall this shows no change from the previous years overall assessment, 

although arguably it has been a harder test than previous years. Looking at 
the individual judgement areas, 5 have remained the same. Two have 
changed: Improved Quality of Life has fallen from a good (well) to adequate 
and Increased Choice and Control has risen from adequate to well. Further 
comment on these changes  can be found within the report. A copy of the 
CQC report is attached at Appendix 1, while the following paragraphs highlight 
some key findings. 
 

4.4 The report identifies areas where the council is performing well and areas in 
which it needs to improve and these are summarised below together with 
some comments on action taken or planned to address areas for 
improvement. Although, as noted above, there is no longer a rating for 
leadership and commissioning and use of resources, comments are made in 
the report and the key findings are therefore included here. 

 
4.5 Leadership and Commissioning and Use of Resources 
 
4.5.1 Leadership: What the council does well 
 

• The council has a vision for the transformation of adult social care services 
in line with Putting People First. 

• Has ambitious plans for modernising services to meet aspirations for more 
user choice and control in care services. 

• A new quality assurance framework is now in place and will further assist 
in promoting better outcomes, supported by a new model of assessment 
and care management. 

• Partnership working has continued to improve, NHS Brent is now 
financially fit and able to contribute more substantially on a number of 
fronts, which is reflected in the LAA. 

 
4.5.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• The council should continue to progress the full implementation of self 
directed care services, underpinned by robust IT and finance systems. 

• The council needs to ensure that there is sustained improvement on key 
performance measures of responsiveness and delivery. 

 
4.5.3  Implementation of self directed support is central to the Adult Social care 

transformation project and we expect to see significant progress over the 
remainder of 2009/10 and into the future, supported by the structural changes 
already implemented as a result of the review of assessment and care 
management, among other initiatives.  Similarly, these changes will underpin 
improvement on the responsiveness and delivery of services, with key 
indicators showing that progress continues to be made. 

 
4.5.4 Commissioning and use of Resources: What the council does well 
 

• Commissioned supporting people services are now aligned for the 
personalisation agenda  

• The council is finalising a joint agreement for a pooled budget for carers 

Page 11



and implementing a comprehensive shared intermediate care strategy. 
• Contracting has been strengthened and there is better engagement with 

poorer performing regulated services. 
 
4.5.5 What the council needs to improve 
 

• The council should ensure the completion of the new commissioning 
intentions and voluntary sector strategy. 

• The council should continue to develop the capacity of users and carers to 
engage within service and workforce development. 

• The council and partners should continue to work to raise standards in 
independent sector care, including the levels of safeguarding training. 

 
4.5.6 Work has started on the development of strategies for commissioning and the 

voluntary sector, although both will require extensive consultation with 
partners and service users and completion is anticipated in 2010/11.  The 
department involves service users and carers in a range of ways and this is 
an area in which our approach is developing continually.  Examples include 
specific consultations around proposed service changes, as in the area of day 
care, as well as through the Partnership Boards, the Carers’ Centre and work 
with families moving to personalised budgets.  Finally, a training programme is 
in place on safeguarding for organisations in the independent sector. 

 
4.6 Improved Health and Emotional Well-being 
 
4.6.1 What the council does well 
 

• Effective joint working has continued to help to deliver an effective Health 
and Well-being Strategy.  

• The council has increased intermediate care options for people to help 
reduce the number of people experiencing delayed discharges from 
hospital, and to avoid unnecessary attendance and admission to hospital. 

• The council undertakes quality assurance monitoring of their meals 
service. 

 
4.6.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• Deliver a more fully integrated range of intermediate care services. 
• Further reduce the number of older people who are delayed in discharge 

from hospital.  
• To resolve the shortage in beds for people with dementia. 
• Further develop standards with partners for end of life care in the borough. 
• Further improve the rate of reviews for people receiving services. 

 
4.6.3 The Intermediate Care Strategy is in place and is already delivering tangible 

improvements, for example in addressing performance on delayed 
discharges, with future plans including significant investment in reablement 
services.  It is expected that this will deliver improvements against indicators 
measuring independence for older people (N! 125), delayed transfers of care 
(NI 131), services to carers (NI 135) and enabling people to live at home (NI 
139). It is considered vital that there is a sustained improvement in this area if 
we are going to improve on the current adequate rating. Specific proposals 
are in place to deliver additional provision for people with dementia, including 

Page 12



a significant increase in Extra Care housing.  The new arrangements for 
assessment and care management will deliver improved performance in 
reviews. 

 
4.7 Improved Quality of Life 
 
4.7.1 What the council does well 
 

• Minor adaptations are provided in a timely manner. 
• The provision of information and support to carers has been enhanced. 

 
4.7.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• Major adaptations need to be provided more quickly. 
• Increase the provision of telecare. 
• The council needs to continue to explore means to reduce the use of 

residential care, especially for people with mental health problems or a 
physical disability. 

• Ensure that plans around extra care housing provision are developed and 
realised.  

• Ensure that the planned development of peer advocacy and planned 
increases to specialist advocacy are implemented and the impact is 
monitored.   

 
4.7.3 This is the one area of judgement where our rating has decreased from 

2007/8. Our performance in respect of Major adaptions needs to considerably 
improve if we are to move this rating back to its previous level. To this end an 
end-to-end review of the process for major adaptations has been undertaken 
and additional resources have been devoted to securing improvement in turn 
round times in this year and over 2010/11.  A new post has been established 
to take forward increased telecare provision.  There are indications that the 
council may have under-represented past performance in this area and a 
review of the reporting mechanisms is being undertaken.  In the longer term, 
plans are in place for a significant increase in extra care housing, with the 
programme beginning to deliver over the next twelve months, which will be the 
main platform for a reduction in the use of residential care.   

 
4.7.4 Advocacy provision has increased in line with the programme for developing 

self directed support, with significant increases in, for example, learning 
disabilities.  Work has been undertaken with MENCAP to develop quality 
standards and funding has been provided for a “speaking up” group.  Further 
development is planned for 2009-11 across all user groups. 

 
4.8 Making a Positive Contribution 
 
4.8.1 What the council does well 
 

• There is a user and carer involvement strategy central to the 
Transformation Programme. 

• Annual voluntary sector conferences have commenced and are reported 
as working well to shape the future service delivery. 

• Enhanced user, carer and third sector involvement in shaping of new 
service provisions. 

Page 13



 
4.8.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• Continue to develop the consistency and range of advocacy services 
• Ensure that processes around the involvement of users and carers who 

are directly affected by changes to service provision are fully embedded. 
 
4.8.3 Progress and plans for advocacy have been noted at 4.7.4 above, while user 

and carer involvement is covered at 4.5.6. 
 
4.9 Increased Choice and Control 
 
4.9.1 What the council does well 
 

• The council is progressing the move towards self directed services, 
building on developments in services for people with a learning disability. 

• Timeliness of assessments has improved and initial contact, assessment 
and care planning is being remodelled. 

• The council has increased number of people accessing direct payments 
and they are being used creatively to improve outcomes. 

 
4.9.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• To continue to progress the full implementation of Self-Directed Support 
and measure its impact. 

• To continue to shift the balance of care to more community based options. 
• To ensure that the re-design of assessment and care management 

delivers a prompt and effective assessment service 
• Care packages are delivered more promptly. 
 

4.9.3 Some of these points are addressed at 4.5.3 above, but it should be stressed 
that the redesign of assessment and care management is already delivering 
improvements that will continue into 2010/11 and beyond in both the 
implementation of SDS and the delivery of prompt and effective assessments 
and reviews.   

 
4.9.4 The overall targets for implementing the Personalisation agenda will be 

increasing year on year. Meeting those targets will go beyond just giving 
individuals personal budgets and will result over time in the review and, where 
necessary, restructuring of our direct services provision. This is to both ensure 
that it offers services that are fit for individuals who will be able to decide to 
choose or decline the services that are on offer and that we are able to still 
deliver a service within the overall budget and that where necessary 
resources are released . The move to community based options will also be 
consistent with the improvement detailed in 4.7.2 in reducing the number of 
people in residential care. The introduction of an effective re-ablement service 
is also considered a very high priority as all evidence suggests that it results in 
better outcomes for individuals as they have a much greater likelihood of 
maximising their independence , whilst also increasing the value for money for 
the authority. 

Page 14



 
4.10 Freedom from Discrimination and Harassment 
 
4.10.1 What the council does well 
 

• The council has achieved level four of the equality standards for local 
government. 

• The council now has an equality action plan with set targets to be 
delivered over three years. 

• There is also a rolling programme of equalities learning and development 
activities aimed at improving equality outcomes. 

 
4.10.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• The council should ensure that the take-up of services is monitored where 
organisations supporting people who use services have opportunities to 
discuss those results.   

 
4.10.3 The CQC has noted that people are provided with advice and information to 

think through options around support, costs and funding and that information 
is provided to those who do not meet eligibility criteria, as well as the provision 
of advice and screening through the One Stop service.  However, they have 
indicated that the council could do more to monitor service take up.  This is 
being addressed through the new arrangements for assessment and includes 
work to ensure that voluntary sector or other organisations working with 
service users have the opportunity to contribute. 
 

4.11 Economic Well-being 
 
4.11.1 What the council does well 
 

• There is good progress being made around support brokerage. 
• The council has increased the number of people who are volunteers. 
• There are a number of services supporting people to develop skills and get 

employment. 
• There is an improvement in the job seekers allowance claimant rate which 

fell at a faster rate than the rest of London and nationally. 
 
4.11.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• Continue to develop work opportunities for people with a disability. 
 
4.11.3 This is a Local Area Agreement priority and the CQC have been provided with 

detailed information on the range of programmes and initiatives that support 
access to employment and training.  The Performance Assessment reflects 
this, noting that there is “strong evidence to suggest that people of working 
age who use services and their carers are assisted in preparing for and 
finding employment”.  Clearly, current economic conditions will present a 
challenge in this area, but there is a strong platform on which to build further 
improvement in what should be regarded as a strong area for the service. 

Page 15



 
4.12 Maintaining Personal Dignity and Respect 
 
4.12.1 What the council does well 
 

• There have been enhancements to reporting mechanisms to the adults 
safeguarding board and an independent chair is being appointed.   

• A quality assurance framework and case file audit system is in place and 
delivering improvements in practice and outcomes. 

• A Safeguarding Senior Practitioner post has been created to analyse, 
advise and audit implementation of the Mental Capacity Act. 

 
4.12.2 What the council needs to improve 
 

• Explore and review with partners the lower than average rate of referrals to 
ensure full accessibility. 

• The council recognises that there remains a need to improve on case 
conferences, and ensuring outcomes for perpetrators are clear. 

• The council should explore opportunities to engage users, carers and 
family members as care experts, especially those who consider 
themselves to be or have been at risk.   

• Further increase training for staff in the independent care sector. 
• The council should ensure that all service inspection recommendations are 

completed within a reasonable timescale after the launch of the pan-
London safeguarding procedures. 

 
4.12.3 As indicated earlier, this is the one area where the rating has improved since 

2007/8. That year we could not achieve  a higher rating as we had been rated 
as adequate on the safeguarding inspection which had taken place during that 
year. The increased rating is at least in part due to the fact that CQC are 
satisfied that we have made sufficient progress in respect of Safeguarding. 
The department has and will continue to implement the action plan developed 
following the inspection of adult safeguarding and the performance  Reasons 
for the relatively low rate of referrals compared to similar authorities are being 
explored and further improvements have been made to the system for case 
conferences.  As noted earlier, a training programme is in place for external 
agencies and opportunities to engage service users and carers form part of 
the wider approach to engagement noted above. 

 
 

5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 
6. Financial Implications 
 
6.1  Whilst there are few specific references to the overall cost of adult social care 

within the Brent report and no specific recommendations for achieving the 
required improvement, enhancing performance is not always cost free and is 
set against the overall demographic pressures which put a year on year 
pressure on the adult social care budget. Within their national report CQC 
have indicated that they will “be vigilant about spotting the impact of the 
economic downturn on people’s access to social care”. It is therefore 

Page 16



imperative that the Department continues to ensure that all the services we 
either procure or directly provide offer the best value for money. In addition, 
that the types of service we offer are themselves designed to maximise the 
independence and choice of individuals and minimise (where possible) long 
term dependency.  

 
7.0 Diversity Implications 
 
6.1 This report and the annual review of performance recognise good progress 

and practice in respect of equality and diversity issues in the delivery of social 
care services which contribute to the improvement of life chances for our 
diverse community. 

 
8.0 Staffing/Accommodation Implications  

 
7.1 There are no immediate staffing or accommodation implications arsing from 

this report, but members are asked to note that delivering continued 
improvement in performance will almost certainly create staffing pressures in 
some parts of the department.   

 
 
Background Papers 
 
Annual performance assessment of adult social care services 2009 
 
 
Contact Officers 
 
Martin Cheeseman – Director Housing and Community Care 
martin.cheeseman@brent.gov.uk  tel 0208 937 2341 
 
Tony Hirsch – Head of Policy and Performance, Housing and Community Care 
tony.hirsch@brent.gov.uk, tel. 0208 937 2336 
 
 
Keith Skerman - Assistant Director Community Care, Mahatma Gandhi House, 34 
Wembley Hill Road, Wembley HA9 8AD tel: 020 8937 4230 email: 
keith.skerman@brent.gov.uk 
  

 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
 

APPENDIX 1:  
 
Annual Performance Assessment Report 

2008/2009 
 

Adult Social Care Services  
  
 

Council Name: Brent 

 

This report is a summary of the performance of how the council promotes adult social care 

outcomes for people in the council area.  The overall grade for performance is combined from 

the grades given for the individual outcomes.  There is a brief description below – see 

Grading for Adult Social Care Outcomes 2008/09 in the Performance Assessment Guide web 

address below, for more detail. 

Poorly performing – not delivering the minimum requirements for people 

Performing adequately – only delivering the minimum requirements for people 

Performing well – consistently delivering above the minimum requirements for people 

Performing excellently- overall delivering well above the minimum requirements for people 

 

We also make a written assessment  about  

Leadership and Commissioning and use of resources 

 

Information on these additional areas can be found in the outcomes framework 

To see the outcomes framework please go to our web site:  Outcomes framework 

You will also find an explanation of terms used in the report in the glossary on the web site. 

 

Page 18



 
Delivering Outcomes Assessment 
 
Overall Brent council is performing: 

Poorly, Adequately, Well, 
Excellently 

 
Outcome 1:  
Improved health and emotional well–being The council is performing:  
 
Outcome 2:  
Improved quality of life The council is performing:  
 
Outcome 3:  
Making a positive contribution The council is performing:  
 
Outcome 4:  
Increased choice and control The council is performing:  
 
Outcome 5: 
Freedom from discrimination and 
harassment The council is performing:  
 
Outcome 6:  
Economic well-being The council is performing:  
 
Outcome 7:  
Maintaining personal dignity and respect The council is performing:  
 

 
Click on titles above to view a text summary of the outcome. 

 
 

Page 19



Assessment of Leadership and Commissioning and use of 
resources 

 
Leadership  
 
What the council does well. 
 
• The council has a vision for the transformation of adult social care services 

in line with Putting People First. 
• Has ambitious plans for modernising services to meet aspirations for more 

user choice and control in care services. 
• A new quality assurance framework is now in place and will further assist 

in promoting better outcomes, supported by a new model of assessment 
and care management. 

• Partnership working has continued to improve, NHS Brent is now 
financially fit and able to contribute more substantially on a number of 
fronts, which is reflected in the LAA. 

 
What the council needs to improve. 
 
• The council should continue to progress the full implementation of self 

directed care services, underpinned by robust IT and finance systems. 
• The council needs to ensure that there is sustained improvement on key 

performance measures of responsiveness and delivery. 
 
Commissioning and use of resources  

 
What the council does well. 

 
• Commissioned supporting people services are now aligned for the 

personalisation agenda  
• The council is finalising a joint agreement for a pooled budget for carers 

and implementing a comprehensive shared intermediate care strategy. 
• Contracting has been strengthened and there is better engagement with 

poorer performing regulated services. 
 
What the council needs to improve. 
 
• The council should ensure the completion of the new commissioning 

intentions and voluntary sector strategy. 
• The council should continue to develop the capacity of users and carers to 

engage within service and workforce development. 
• The council and partners should continue to work to raise standards in 

independent sector care, including the levels of safeguarding training. 

Page 20



Summary of Performance  
 
The council has adopted the vision for the transformation of adult social care 
services in line with Putting People First and has ambitious plans to 
modernise services to meet the aspirations for more user choice and control 
in care services. Elected members engage with users and carers through 
chairing the Learning Disability Partnership Board, and chairing the Pensioner 
and other User Forums.    
Partnership working with the NHS continues to improve. NHS Brent is now 
financially fit and able to contribute more substantially on a number of fronts, 
such as in supporting regeneration, safeguarding arrangements and 
integration of intermediate care and this is reflected in the Local Area 
Agreement (LAA).  There is a significant shared change agenda between 
health and social care. The council is confident there is the management 
capacity to achieve this. Strong programme management will be needed to 
ensure projects and improvements are delivered successfully and on 
schedule, within a context of required efficiency savings. There are areas 
where the council has to raise performance to match similar councils, such as 
on timeliness of assessment and delivery of care packages and major 
adaptations. A new care assessment model should facilitate this. There is also 
a need to invest in more community support services such as telecare to 
realise ambitions to reduce the use of residential and nursing care. The 
council has achieved an increase in the take up of direct payments, and is 
working on the tools and processes which underpin the wider introduction of 
personal budgets.  A new quality assurance framework is now in place and 
will further assist in promoting better outcomes.  
A review of partnership boards should create a more robust platform for 
partnership arrangements that can address the difficult decisions that will 
inevitably arise in achieving the objectives agreed by the Local Strategic 
Partnership.  
The council has a workforce strategy, and is working through some 
recruitment difficulties within Occupational Therapist (OT) roles.  The council 
ensures that its own staff who work directly with vulnerable adults receive 
appropriate training, but there is further progress needed in the private and 
voluntary sectors where numbers trained are comparatively low and a number 
of services fail to meet the national minimum standards in this area.    
Performance management data is provided from a central database.  There is 
limited evidence to support that the data contained within the system is robust, 
and a service inspection had previously found input to be inconsistent.  
However, there are mechanisms in place to alert where there is data missing 
and the system is to be enhanced to support personalisation as the council 
takes this agenda forward. 
The council is working to integrate the views of people who use services, their 
carers and other stakeholders in their commissioning intentions and a 
voluntary sector strategy has been drafted, although this will not be finalised 
until 2011.  Work is also ongoing with user groups to develop the capacity of 
users to engage within service and workforce development and this is starting 
to deliver some improved outcomes.  
The council are increasing capacity within commissioning and building upon 
good practice elsewhere, including developing outcome based 
commissioning.  The council has also begun to engage more with shaping the 
local market to ensure that supply meets needs for range and quality.  It 
should seek to be able to demonstrate that new commissioning models lead 
to improved outcomes for people in Brent. The council has a joint strategic 

Page 21



needs assessment with NHS Brent, which was previously found to provide 
robust analyses of demographic and health data, informing current and 
projected needs.  Contracting processes have also been strengthened and 
targeted engagement with poorer performing regulated services is starting to 
assist in lifting the provision within the borough, but there is more work 
required to raise some from only adequate.  

Page 22



Outcome 1: Improved health and emotional well–being 
 

The council is performing:  Poorly, Adequately, Well, Excellently 
 
There is evidence that the council is working effectively to ensure that people 
are informed and advised about physical and mental health and well-being.  
The council campaigns to promote healthier and safer lifestyles and has an 
Older People Wellbeing Strategy and Better Government for Older People 
initiative which has wide involvement.  There has been targeted action to 
address particular health concerns in partnership with the NHS Brent, such as 
to support people and their carers who have been affected by stroke.  There is 
evidence that the Emergency Admissions Risk Likelihood Index, now widely 
used by GPs, the Care Co-ordination approach and intermediate care 
services have helped to avoid unnecessary hospital attendance and 
admissions. This has allowed some reinvestment by the NHS in additional 
community staff.   Both the council and partners report effective joint working 
to help reduce the number of people delayed in being discharged from 
hospital.  However, the overall number of delays attributable to social care still 
appear comparatively high and the new integrated intermediate care services 
need to make further impact on reducing hospital stays. The council has set 
an LAA target on reducing delayed transfers of care, acknowledging it as a 
priority for Brent and has achieved its first year target. There has been some 
delay in the development of the intermediate care strategy and the council 
needs to ensure that it presses ahead promptly with health partners to 
maximise the options for older people in Brent.  
The council has had only limited success in reducing residential care 
admissions for older people.  The council is therefore planning to do more to 
support people to remain in their own homes such as increasing the provision 
of telecare equipment and doubling its reablement capacity, to keep people 
independent for as long as possible.   
Brent Mental Health Services (BMHS) have implemented systems to improve 
discharge practice and processes.  Brent continues to invest in a range of 
residential and other treatment options for people with drug or alcohol related 
problems. 
There is evidence that the majority of people who are in care homes within the 
borough are receiving good quality care including meals that are balanced, 
promote health, and meet their cultural and dietary needs.  In addition, where 
people require meals services within their own homes, the council monitors 
the quality of the contracted service and the findings of this monitoring is used 
to drive change.   
The council has increased the rate of reviews for people receiving services, 
but it is still well below the regional average. 
For end of life care, the council has a Palliative Care Team, Hospice and 
improved working relations have enhanced continuity of care processes. 
However, for regulated services operating within the borough, 3 out of the 7 
nursing homes were less likely to provide assurance that at a client’s time of 
death staff would treat them and their family with care, sensitivity and respect.  
The councils own care home for older people however met this standard, as 
did other personal care homes within the borough.    
 

Page 23



What the council does well 
• Effective joint working has continued to help to deliver an effective Health 

and Well-being Strategy.  
• The council has increased intermediate care options for people to help 

reduce the number of people experiencing delayed discharges from 
hospital, and to avoid unnecessary attendance and admission to hospital. 

• The council undertakes quality assurance monitoring of their meals 
service. 

 
What the council needs to improve 
• Deliver a more fully integrated range of intermediate care services. 
• Further reduce the number of older people who are delayed in discharge 

from hospital.  
• To resolve the shortage in beds for people with dementia. 
• Further develop standards with partners for end of life care in the borough. 
• Further improve the rate of reviews for people receiving services. 
 
 
Outcome 2: Improved quality of life 
 

The council is performing: Poorly, Adequately, Well, Excellently 
 
 
There is evidence that people who use services and carers get advice and 
support at an early stage.  People who need small pieces of equipment and 
minor adaptations are provided with these quickly. There has been enhanced 
information provision to carers, and a new resource centre opened in 
December 08 to assist with rehabilitation services.  The council is also 
working towards the transformation of services to provide self-directed care.   
Brent estimates a need to significantly increase their extra-care housing 
options and provide more specialist advocacy services, including peer 
advocacy.  However, plans for extra care housing for 08/09 were not realised.   
In addition, people who require major adaptations to their homes on average 
wait longer than in most councils in the country. There are delays both in 
assessment, due to OT shortages, and in making the adaptations. The council 
has a risk assessment strategy in place, is reviewing the whole process and 
implementing an action plan to improve on this persistent area of poor 
performance.  More people could probably benefit from assistive technologies 
(telecare), as the council provides this less frequently than similar councils, 
and which could thereby play a larger role in supporting people to remain in 
their own homes.  Intensive home care has increased, but overall levels of 
support to people to live independently are lower than in similar councils. 
The council promotes social inclusion opportunities for people who are carers 
and for them to use mainstream local services.  For young carers, the council 
provides funding for a project to help them socialise more.  There are a 
number of projects to assist social inclusion for older people and those with 
disabilities including reviewing access to transport, sport and leisure activities 
and volunteering. 
 

What the council does well 
• Minor adaptations are provided in a timely manner. 

Page 24



• The provision of information and support to carers has been enhanced. 
 
What the council needs to improve 
• Major adaptations need to be provided more quickly. 
• Increase the provision of telecare. 
• The council needs to continue to explore means to reduce the use of 

residential care, especially for people with mental health problems or a 
physical disability. 

• Ensure that plans around extra care housing provision are developed and 
realised.  

• Ensure that the planned development of peer advocacy and planned 
increases to specialist advocacy are implemented and the impact is 
monitored.   

Page 25



Outcome 3: Making a positive contribution 
 

The council is performing:  Poorly, Adequately, Well, Excellently 
 

There is evidence that people who use services and their carers are 
supported to take part in community life and that users and carers are actively 
involved in developing services.  There is a user and carer involvement 
strategy central to the Transformation Programme.  Voluntary organisations 
are encouraged to contribute views and have assisted in the development of 
some services that support people.  A first annual voluntary sector conference 
was held as part of a series of measures to improve the relationship with the 
voluntary sector.  People who use services are represented on all Partnership 
boards and all boards have recently reviewed and revised their governance 
arrangements.  Feedback however indicated that the council may not be fully 
representing the views of people with sensory disabilities and the council 
agreed to reconvene the group affected. There have been consultations on 
draft strategies including for housing, mental health accommodation and 
dementia care.   
The redevelopment of day services for people with a learning disability has 
brought out some diversity of interests and dissatisfaction with process; the 
council has worked to resolve this through an action plan arising from a 
complaint.  The experience and views of users and their carers in the future 
are expected be more inclusive in helping to shape service improvements. 
The council’s quality assurance framework also embraces the perspective of 
user expertise.  As part of the council’s quality assurance framework, a 
telephone survey was undertaken to seek service user views on food 
temperatures, presentation of meals, texture and taste, delivery times, 
delivery staff customer care, and the range of meals available.  This has 
enabled the council to gauge views on various quality issues.  Comments 
have been used to drive changes for the new contracted out service.  People 
who use services and their carers have also been involved in recruitment and 
training.   
Volunteers are actively encouraged; ‘Keep in touch – Brent’ is an established 
Age Concern service which provides phone contact with older people through 
volunteers.   
 
 

What the council does well 
• There is a user and carer involvement strategy central to the 

Transformation Programme. 
• Annual voluntary sector conferences have commenced and are reported 

as working well to shape the future service delivery. 
• Enhanced user, carer and third sector involvement in shaping of new 

service provisions. 
 
What the council needs to improve 
• Continue to develop the consistency and range of advocacy services 
• Ensure that processes around the involvement of users and carers who 

are directly affected by changes to service provision is fully embedded. 
 

Page 26



Outcome 4: Increased choice and control 
 

The council is performing:  Poorly, Adequately, Well, Excellently 
 

There is evidence to suggest that current advice and information provided by 
the council has assisted clients to think through support options, risks, costs 
and funding.  The council has a single point of access, the One Stop Service, 
as their initial point of contact.  A service redesign project is intended to bring 
a sharper focus on advice and information through one point to all people who 
contact the council for social care.  Work to improve information and sign-
posting for people seeking support was being developed for all social care 
contacts and to be available through the web-site, and change is expected to 
be implemented during 2009.   
More older people are now being assessed within 28 days, but performance in 
this respect is still markedly slower than for similar councils, and the council 
reports this was adversely affected by the move towards self-directed support.  
The council is reorganising assessment and care management arrangements 
with the full involvement of frontline staff and which should enable people who 
need services and their carers to take more control of their support in the 
future, but was still work in progress.  Timeliness of delivery of social care 
packages following assessment has declined significantly from the preceding 
year and is also now below that of similar councils.  
Through awareness raising and enhanced guidance, the council has 
significantly increased the number of people who are making use of direct 
payment, and has met the council’s target for the year but is still below the 
average for London.  The pattern of use across user groups is for more lower 
cost packages than in the national picture.  The council has focused early 
development of self-directed care on people with a learning disability linked to 
a modernisation programme for the existing services. This has provided a 
model for developing the tools and processes and for then extending for all 
users and carers.  An enhanced and expanded Direct Payments support 
provider service, specified in consultation with carers and service users, was 
due to start in July 2009.  An additional support provider has also been 
introduced into Brent to support people who do not wish to be an employer.  
The council has ambitious plans for moving more substantially towards self 
directed care, but is still at an early stage.   
There is evidence to suggest that people who use services do benefit from a 
range of support services on offer, though as reported above more people 
could be supported to live independently by increased telecare and 
adaptations, and thereby reduce the use of residential care.  There are a wide 
range of services tailored to meet the needs of people from diverse 
communities and users are able to contact service providers when they need 
to.  Good work is evidenced with carers, through organised events, 
development of a dedicated web-site, availability of breaks, direct payments 
and the planned development of a pooled carers’ budget.  However, on a 
comparative measure for carers receiving needs assessment or review and a 
specific carer’s service, or advice and information, fewer carers in Brent are 
benefiting from these services than in similar councils. 
A quality assurance framework to address variable quality of assessments 
has been developed and audits are being undertaken to quality assure the 
new integrated assessment and care management structure.  Self 
assessment reviews have been developed in learning disability with a staff 

Page 27



development programme and are reported to lead to better outcome based 
care plans. 
There was some indication from a complaint investigation that care planning 
did not fully engage with service users and carers; the council investigated 
and agreed an action plan.  
Complaints appear to be well managed; response times have improved, 
pressure points of complaint areas found in 07/08 have reduced for 08/09 and 
action plans are developed for all complaints.  To assist effective learning 
from complaints, the council should consider a direct analysis in the annual 
report of complaint components which are upheld/partly upheld to target 
problem areas.     
There has been a growth in brokerage and advocacy for learning disabled 

clients, with plans for progress into older people’s services and physical 

disability services in 09/10, but some advocacy is available via Age Concern 

and Elders Voice.     

 

What the council does well 
• The council is progressing the move towards self directed services, 

building on developments in services for people with a learning disability. 
• Timeliness of assessments has improved and initial contact, assessment 

and care planning is being remodelled. 
• The council has increased number of people accessing direct payments 

and they are being used creatively to improve outcomes. 
 
What the council needs to improve 
• To continue to progress the full implementation of Self-Directed Support 

and measure its impact. 
• To continue to shift the balance of care to more community based options. 
• To ensure that the re-design of assessment and care management 

delivers a prompt and effective assessment service 
• Care packages are delivered more promptly. 
 
 
Outcome 5: Freedom from discrimination and harassment 
 

The council is performing:  Poorly, Adequately, Well, Excellently 
 
The council’s eligibility criteria for the provision of care services has remained 
unchanged for some years, and people are provided with advice and 
information to help think through support options, risks, costs and funding. An 
Information Directory is being developed to ensure those not meeting criteria 
or self-funding know where to find help. As part of the development of the one 
stop service, there has been work on screening and advice arrangements, in 
order to ensure greater consistency.  However, there is limited evidence to 
suggest that the take-up of services is being monitored beyond routine 
contract monitoring where organisations supporting people who use services 
have opportunities to discuss those results.   

Page 28



Brent Council had achieved level 4  of the equality standards for local 
government at the end of March 2009 and the council had developed an 
equality action plan with set targets to be delivered from 2008-11.  There is a 
rolling programme of equalities learning and development activities.  
Equalities Impact Assessments are carried out to inform service 
transformation. Equalities data is recorded and monitored to assess 
accessibility and take-up.  There is a wide range of services available to 
communities which reflect the diversity of the population. 
The council is engaging with people from black and minority ethnic groups, 
and voluntary organisations around safeguarding and prevention, including 
work in the community to keep people safer in their own homes.  
 
 

What the council does well 
• The council has achieved level four of the equality standards for local 

government. 
• The council now has an equality action plan with set targets to be 

delivered over three years. 
• There is also a rolling programme of equalities learning and development 

activities aimed at improving equality outcomes. 
 
What the council needs to improve 
• The council should ensure that the take-up of services is monitored where 

organisations supporting people who use services have opportunities to 
discuss those results.   

 
 
Outcome 6: Economic well - being 
 

The council is performing:  Poorly, Adequately, Well, Excellently 
 
People who use services and their carers are helped through readily available 
information and advice to maximise income to meet support costs and to be 
financially secure. There is help via the council and voluntary sector to ensure 
take-up of benefit entitlements with links to other support such as tackling fuel 
poverty.  There is also work to develop this further using independent support 
brokers for users considering direct payments, as the council moves towards 
more self directed care. 
There is strong evidence to suggest that people of working age who use 
services and their carers are assisted in preparing for, and finding 
employment.  After 6 years of investment the job seekers claimant rate has 
fallen.  There is good access to training and employment opportunities for 
those people who are eligible, which is captured in individual support plans 
and effective work with carers to support those who are working or wish to find 
employment.  Work is also in progress to find employment for people who are 
in transition from children’s to adults services. 
Brent promotes open employment in partnership with external providers in the 
community: e.g. Brent in2 Work, Toucan, Mencap, Remploy and the College 
of North West London.  There is a specific project to support disabled people 
with complex needs.  Community Networks coordinates work placement and 
training activity for people recovering from mental illness.  

Page 29



Forty people have been supported to volunteer in 2008/09, with a small 
number of them obtaining paid employment as a result.  The service is 
popular and now has a waiting list of over 40 learning disabled clients.  
Comparative data from national indicators (NI 146) suggest that employment 
of people with learning disabilities is lower than in similar councils.  
 

What the council does well 
• There is good progress being made around support brokerage. 
• The council has increased the number of people who are volunteers. 
• There are a number of services supporting people to develop skills and get 

employment. 
• There is an improvement in the job seekers allowance claimant rate which 

fell at a faster rate than the rest of London and nationally. 
 
What the council needs to improve 
• Continue to develop work opportunities for people with a disability. 
 
 
Outcome 7: Maintaining personal dignity and respect 
 

The council is performing:  Poorly, Adequately, Well, Excellently 
 
Following the service inspection, the council has undertaken much work and 
increased capacity to strengthen safeguarding practice, and there is greater 
confidence that people are getting better outcomes.  Alerts appear to be 
investigated promptly and the outcomes of safeguarding incidents are now 
monitored and reviewed through the partnership board. There has been 
discussion and agreement reached about key monitoring information and 
revisions to ensure clarity around the closure of cases.  A safeguarding 
awareness raising programme has been undertaken with black and minority 
ethnic and hard to reach groups on safeguarding and preventing abuse, which 
probably contributed to a 20% increase of referrals in 08/09.  However, the 
rate of referral relative to population is still lower than in similar councils and 
this should be explored with partners and through the new communications 
strategy to ensure full accessibility.  The rate of completion of investigations 
has fallen and attention may be needed to explore and ensure delays do not 
increase.  A quality audit function has been established and is starting to 
feedback into a circle of improvement in practice and identifying areas for 
further improvement. Other developments include the use of the Strategy 
Discussion Template to strengthen the evidencing of strategy decisions, more 
multi-agency working at strategy stage, improved risk assessment and interim 
protection plans, an increase in the proportion of cases that go to case 
conference and improvements in recording outcomes for service users.  Users 
surveyed reported that they felt safer after the process and knew whom to 
contact with any future concerns. 
The council should explore opportunities to engage users, carers and family 
members as care experts, especially those who consider themselves to be or 
have been at risk, beyond the use of customer surveys.   
There is evidence to suggest that people who use services and their carers 
find that personal care respects their dignity, privacy and personal 
preferences.  The council has an improved training programme, and high 
numbers of relevant adult social care staff within the council had received 

Page 30



training during 08/09, with the audit process now being used to identify more 
sharply the training needs for 09/10. This needs to be extended wider to the 
private and voluntary sector, where levels of training increased over the 
previous year but still less than half of staff had received training supported by 
the council, and a high proportion of registered services were found to have 
shortfalls in this area on inspection.   
Nearly all regulated services were found to be providing a good level of 
protection, though lower for domiciliary care and nurses agencies.  The 
council has worked effectively with partners and the regulator to improve the 
quality in a residential service rated as poor.  
 

What the council does well 
• There have been enhancements to reporting mechanisms to the adults 

safeguarding board and an independent chair is being appointed.   
• A quality assurance framework and case file audit system is in place and 

delivering improvements in practice and outcomes. 
• A Safeguarding Senior Practitioner post has been created to analyse, 

advise and audit implementation of the Mental Capacity Act. 
 
What the council needs to improve 
• Explore and review with partners the lower than average rate of referrals to 

ensure full accessibility. 
• The council recognises that there remains a need to improve on case 

conferences, and ensuring outcomes for perpetrators are clear. 
• The council should explore opportunities to engage users, carers and 

family members as care experts, especially those who consider 
themselves to be or have been at risk.   

• Further increase training for staff in the independent care sector. 
• The council should ensure that all service inspection recommendations are 

completed within a reasonable timescale after the launch of the pan-
London safeguarding procedures. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 
 
 

 
THE FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 
 

ISSUE 11 – 8 March 2010 to 5 July 2010 
 

Contact Officer: Anne Reid 
email: anne.reid@brent.gov.uk 
Tel:  020 8937 1359 
Fax: 020 8937 1360 
 

 
The next issue of the Forward Plan, covering the period 5 April 2010 to 2 Aug 2010, will be published on 22 Mar 2010. 

 
 

Paul Lorber 
Leader of the Council 

 

A
genda Item

 10

P
age 33



2 

 
Forward Plan 2009/10 
The Forward Plan sets out the key decisions and other decisions that the Executive intends to take over the following four months, together 
with key decisions by officers and other important decisions to be taken by the Council, its committees or officers.  Briefly, a Key Decision is an 
Executive decision which is likely to result in significant expenditure or savings, or have a significant effect on communities living or working in 
an area comprising two or more wards.   Decisions made by the Executive are subject to a call-in provision.  If any item is called in the Scrutiny 
Committee (made up of Councillors not on the Executive) will meet to consider the item.  Following this, the Executive will meet and take into 
account the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee.  This will usually take place within 4-6 weeks of the original decision.  The Executive 
may then implement or change its decision as it sees fit.  The exact date when the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee on a matter are 
to be considered by the Executive can be obtained from Democratic Services. 
 
The Plan is updated monthly and republished on the Council’s website (www.brent.gov.uk/democracy).   Copies can also be obtained via the 
Town Hall One Stop Shop, Forty Lane, Wembley, Middlesex, HA9 9HD, telephone 020 8937 1366 or via e-mail at committee@brent.gov.uk. 
 
Members of the public are entitled to see the reports that will be relied on when the decision is taken unless confidential or exempt under the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended.   These are listed in column 5 and will be published on the Council’s Website five clear working days 
before the date the decision is due to be taken.  Paper copies will be made available via Democratic Services as detailed above.   The 
Council’s Access to Information Rules set out the entitlement of the public to see documents and reports. 
 
Anyone who wishes to make representations regarding any of the matters listed in this Forward Plan, can do so by forwarding a written 
submission to Democratic Services using the above address/telephone number up to one week before the date the decision is to be taken (see 
column 4).   Where a specific decision date has yet to be identified, contact Democratic Services who will forward representations to the Lead 
Officer. 
 
The membership of the Executive is as follows: 
 
Cllr Lorber (Corporate Strategy & Policy Co-ordination) 
Cllr Blackman (Resources) 
Cllr Allie (Housing & Customer Services) 
Cllr D Brown (Highways and Transportation) 
Cllr Colwill (Adults, Health & Social Care) 
Cllr Detre (Regeneration & Economic Development) 
Cllr Matthews (Crime Prevention & Public Safety) 
Cllr Sneddon (Human Resources & Diversity, Local Democracy & Consultation) 
Cllr Van Colle (Environment, Planning & Culture) 
Cllr Wharton (Children & Families) 
 

P
age 34



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

3 

 
 

CENTRAL/CORPORATE 

 
Cent 
-09/10- 
3 

Brent Equalities Monitoring 
 
To note and approve the report setting out the 
workforce and diversity monitoring data for Brent 
Council for the period of April 2008 up to and 
including March 2009.  

Executive Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Communication 
and Diversity 

Internal Jennifer Laurent-
Smart 
 

F&CR 
-09/10- 
22 

Approval to tender a Leaseholder insurance contract 
 
To authorise the tender process for the Leaseholder 
insurance for leaseholders who have bought former 
council property to take effect at the end of other 
contract in July 2010. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from:  
Director of 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

Internal  Karen Dobson 

F&CR 
-09/10- 
24 

79 Tubbs Road 
 
To agree the disposal of the freehold to a Housing 
Association or by auction. 
 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from:  
Director of 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

Internal  Dipal Patel/ 
James Young 
 

F&CR 
-09/10- 
15 

Pyramid House, Fourth Way, Wembley 
 
To give the Head of Property and Asset 
Management the delegated authority to either enter 
into a renewal lease of Pyramid House and car 
pound, or to enter into a new lease of alternative 
premises for the Parking and Highways operations. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

Internal  James Young 

F&CR 
-09/10- 

Land at Elm  Gardens 
 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 

Ward councillors, 
local residents 

James Young 

P
age 35



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

4 

20 To dispose of land to Housing Association. Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

through the 
planning process) 

F&CR 
-09/10- 
23 

Award of stationery contract 
 
To agree to take part in LB of Havering’s framework 
for office stationery, with immediate effect, together 
with other local authorities, as an efficiency 
measure. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from:  
Director of 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

Internal  Simon Britton 

F&CR 
-09/10- 
21 

Dudden Hill Lane land adjacent to No 19 
 
To dispose of land to Housing Association. 

Executive Apr/May 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

Ward councillors, 
Brent Indian 
Association, Learie 
Constantine Centre 
and local residents 
through the 
planning process 

James Young 

PRU 
-09/10- 
15 

Climate change task group 
 
To consider the recommendations of the task group. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Policy and 
Regeneration 

Internal Stella Akintan 

PRU 
-09/10- 
19 

Safety on the journey to and from school 
 
To consider the recommendations of the task group. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Policy and 
Regeneration 

Internal Stella Akintan 

PRU 
–09/10– 
16 

Childhood Immunisation Task Group 
 
To approve the recommendations made by the task 
group, a number of which will be for NHS Brent. 

Executive Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Policy and 
Regeneration 

Contributors to the 
Task Group report 
Health Select 
Committee 

Andrew Davies 

PRU 
–09/10– 
17 

Transition Services Task Group 
 
To approve the recommendations made by the task 
group in relation services in place for vulnerable 

Executive Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Policy and 
Regeneration 

Contributors to the 
review 

Andrew Davies 

P
age 36



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

5 

young people aged 16 to 24 in Brent. 

PRU 
–09/10– 
14 

Performance and Finance Review Q3 2009/10  
 
To confirm the third quarter’s performance, activity 
and spending in 2009/10. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Policy and 
Regeneration 

Internal Adimaya Keni/ 
Chris Bala 

PRU 
–09/10– 
18 

Task Group report - Services for women in and 
exiting Prostitution 
 
To consider the recommendations and key findings 
of the task group report. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Policy and 
Regeneration 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Task 
Group Report 
Services for 
Women in and 
exiting 
prostitution 

Crime Prevention 
Strategy Group 
Individual partner 
agencies 

Jacqueline 
Casson 

 
 

CHILDREN & FAMILIES 

 
C&F 
-09/10- 
018 

Commissioning of the specialist Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) in Brent 
2010-11 
 
To approve the award of the specialist CAMHS 
contract for 2010-11, for one year beginning 1 April 
2010 (approval is required before this date).  As a 
High Value contract, the service is subject to the 
Council’s Standing Orders, which stipulate that the 
Executive must approve any decision to not put a 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Children and 
Families 

Internal  John Christie 

P
age 37



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

6 

High Value service out to tender. 

C&F09/10-
019 

Joint Local Education Partnership Arrangements for 
BSF 
 
To approve entering into a joint Local Education 
Partnership with Barnet and Enfield Councils to 
deliver Brent's Building Schools of the Future 
Programme. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Children and 
Families 

Internal  John Christie 

C&F 
-09/10- 
020 

Kingsbury High Children's Centre 
 
To approve the invitation to tender for Kingsbury 
Intergenerational Centre. 

Executive 15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Children and 
Families 

Internal  John Christie 

C&F 
-09/10- 
021 

Redevelopment of SEN Provision at Hay Lane and 
Grove Park School 
 
To agree to discontinue Grove Park Special School 
on 31 August 2010, alter Hay Lane Special School, 
expanding its places from 120 places to 
235 places and a broadening of the type of 
educational needs for which Hay Lane school is 
organised to enable all pupils of Grove Park Special 
school to attend that school. These proposals are 
related, if either proposal is not agreed the other 
falls. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Children and 
Families 

Internal  John Christie 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE 

 
E&C 
-09/10- 

CCTV Enforcement of MTCs 
 

Executive 15 Mar 10 
 

Report from the 
Director of 

Internal Tim Jackson/ 
Sandor Fazekas,  

P
age 38



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

7 

34 To note progress since approval in principle in March 
2009. 

Environment 
and Culture 

E&C 
-09/10- 
33 

Environment and Culture Capital Spend 2010/11: 
Highways Major Works Programme 
 
To agree to utilise the highway capital budgets as 
recommended, and approve the schemes listed. 

Executive  15 Mar 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Environment 
and Culture 

Internal Tim Jackson/ 
Sandor Fazekas 
 

E&C 
-09/10- 
31 
 

Parks Strategy for Brent 2010-2015 
 
To note the findings of the report and agree the key 
themes and objectives. 

Executive 12 Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Environment 
and Culture 

Public consultation 
undertaken as part 
of development of 
document 

Shaun Faulkner 

E&C 
-09/10- 
35 

Mayor of London’s Consultation  
 
To approve the Council’s response to the following 
documents: 
 
• Delivering London’s Energy Future: The 

Mayor’s draft Climate Change Mitigation and 
Energy Strategy 

• The draft climate change adaptation strategy for 
London  

Executive  12 Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Environment 
and Culture 

Council Services Jeff Bartley 

E&C 
-09/10- 
32 

The Brent Public Realm Design Guide  
 
To approve the Public Realm Design Guide which 
encourages a reduction in street clutter and provides 
guidance on the types of materials and street 
furniture LBB would like to see in its streets and town 
centres. To give approval for the consultation, 
publication and marketing arrangements for 
launching the guide in the public arena. 

Executive 1 Jun 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Environment 
and Culture 

Currently seeking 
the advice of CABE 
(Commission for 
Architecture and 
the Built 
Environment) on 
the draft document. 

Tim Jackson/ 
John Dryden 

 
 

P
age 39



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

8 

HOUSING & COMMUNITY CARE 
 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
14 

Termination of Middlesex House and Lancelot 
Housing scheme 
 
To approve entering into an agreement with Network 
Housing Group in order to terminate the existing 
scheme arrangements in order to convert the 
properties into permanent affordable housing. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Directors of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care and 
Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

Internal  Manjul Shah 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
21 

Authority to proceed with refurbishment of 8 
St Gabriel’s Road and 170 Walm Lane NW2 
 
To approve funding through prudential borrowing 
arrangements for the refurbishment of the properties, 
if funding from the Homes and Communities Agency 
cannot be secured for all or part of the proposed 
work. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal Liz Zacharias 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
28 

Housing and Community Care Social Care: 
Partnership Agreements with NHA organisations 
under S75 Health Act for 2010/11 
 
To agree on the following partnership agreements: 
a) The short term renewal of S31 agreement with the 
CNWL NHA Trust for mental health services, 
pending the completion on a longer term agreement. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal Allison Elliot/ 
Keith Skerman 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
10 

Disposal of HRA freehold blocks/buildings (where 
the leasehold interest of all the individual dwellings 
have been sold 
 
To consider disposal of freehold ownership of 
residential premises that are accounted for under the 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal  Martin 
Cheeseman/ 
Helen Evans 

P
age 40



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

9 

Council’s statutory housing revenue account (HRA)  
(where the leasehold interest of all the dwellings has 
been sold). 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
31 
 

Supply and Demand and Temporary 
Accommodation 
 
To approve the lettings targets for 2010/11 and 
consider an updated supply and demand analysis for 
housing, including performance against Temporary 
Accommodation reduction targets. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal Taiyelolu Oyinlola 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
33 

Local Authority New Building Programme 
 
To authorise delivery of the Local Authority New 
Build Programme to construct 21 new homes and to 
sign a grant with the Homes and Community 
Agency. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal Maggie 
Rafalowicz 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
36 

Authority to exempt from tendering a contract to 
provide a supported housing service at Livingstone 
House 105 Melville Road NW10 8UB 
 
To exemption from standing orders for tendering a 
large single homeless hostel (Livingstone House) for 
good operational and financial reasons. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal  Liz Zacharias 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
38 

ALMO New Build Programme  
 
To approve the disposal of the Ander Close, Mead 
Court and Coppermead Close Garage sites to BHP 
at nil financial consideration in order to develop five 
new affordable units for rent. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal Maggie 
Rafalowicz/ 
Manjul Shah 

P
age 41



(1) 
Ref 

 
 

(2) 
Subject & Decision to be taken 

 
 

(3) 
Decision maker 

 
 

(4) 
Date on or period 

within which 
decision to be 

taken 

(5) 
Relevant reports 

 

(6) 
Those to be consulted 

and how 

 

(7) 
Lead Officer 

 

10 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
37 

Housing and Social Care Non HRA PFI Authority to 
Award Phase 2 of Contract 
 
To approve the award of phase 2 of the Housing and 
Social Care Non HRA Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
contract. 

Executive Mar/Apr 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care  

Internal Maggie 
Rafalowicz/ 
Manjul Shah 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
30 

Main Programme Grant – funding for organisations 
providing Regeneration, Crime and Community 
Safety Services (3 year funding) 
 
To approve applications from local organisation that 
have applied for funding from the Council’s Main 
Programme Grant for 2010 – 13. 

Executive Apr/May 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal Beverleigh 
Forbes 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
29 

A new S75 agreement for the lead commissioning 
function for learning disabilities in line with the 
government policy 
 
To agree an extension of the agreement for a shared 
budget and combined contract with the NHS Brent 
on the Integrated Community Equipment Service, 
with improved outcomes and efficiencies. 

Executive Apr/May 10 Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

Internal  Allison Elliot/ 
Keith Skerman 

H&CC 
-09/10- 
4 

Transfer of funds for learning disability 
 
To accept and agree transfer of funds for learning 
disability from NHS Brent. 

Executive Apr May Report from the 
Director of 
Housing and 
Community 
Care 

NHS Brent, 
Learning Disability 
Partnership Board 

Allison Elliot/ 
Keith Skerman 

 

P
age 42


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 3 March 2010
	7a Brent Equalities Monitoring
	7b CCTV Enforcement of MTCs
	8a Adult Social Care Annual Performance Assessment 2008/09
	10 The Forward Plan - Issue 12

